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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated
by the Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted
newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited collectively and individually accept
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to China Leason Investment
Group Co., Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief:— (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded
on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

www.hkgem.com

(1)
(2)

(3)
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Corporate Profile

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)

and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) conducts business

principally through its operating arm in China (the “PRC”), namely,

Fujian Shine Science Company Limited and Shanghai Shine

Science Company Limited. The Company was incorporated in

Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability in

July 2002 and was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market

(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12

August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in research and development

of software solutions specially targetting the financial and

securities sectors in the PRC. Headquartered in Fujian, the Group

has a development and servicing network covering cities including

Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Fuzhou where the national stock

exchanges and majority of the financial institutions’ headquarters

are based. The comprehensive spectrum of the Group’s software

solutions was centrally developed in our software development

centres in Fuzhou and Shanghai, and implemented, customised

and supported by our local servicing teams.

Through its years of corporate developments, the Group

succeeds in building up its reputation and brand prestige and

has experienced phenomenal growth. The Group is currently one

of the predominant, preferred solution providers of securities

community in the PRC, rendering hardware, peripherals and

professional services in complement to its corporate software

solution offerings. The Group’s products have received high

recognition especially in the domestic securities community.

As our corporate mission, the Group will work to enhance its

position to be the best solution provider for the financial and

securities sectors in China.

In order to diversify the Group’s business into other fields including

but not limited to energy development, on 1 June 2006, the

directors proposed to change the name of the Company from

“Shine Software (Holdings) Limited” to “China Leason Investment

Group Co., Limited”.
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The special resolution on the change of the name of the Company

from “Shine Software (Holdings) Limited” to “China Leason

Investment Group Co., Limited” was passed by the shareholders

of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29

June 2006. The change of name of the Company from “Shine

Software (Holdings) Limited” to “China Leason Investment Group

Co., Limited” took effect from 25 July 2006.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the audited financial results of the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2006.

OPERATION REVIEW
In the past year, China’s securities market revived from the

continuous sluggishness over the previous few years, both the

trading volume and the composite stock indices reaching new

highs. This provided a favorable development opportunity for the

Group’s business expansion of the provision of software solutions

to the finance and securities industry. However, due to the

increase in development costs for research and development as

well as product optimization, coupled with the increase in

administrative and promotional expenditures for exploring new

businesses, in the year of 2006, the Group recorded loss

attributable to shareholders of RMB6,591,000. Moreover, the

turnover volume decreased by 17.5% due to factors such as the

transition of product cycle.

In 2006, the Group actively engaged in the research of new

products and product optimization, as well as a range of

promotional campaigns for our corporate image and products.

In addition, in the second half of 2006, the Group opened new

offices in Beijing and Tinjian, respectively, to expand our business

in the northern region. It is expected that the ongoing

development of China’s securities market coupled with gradual

paid-off of our investments on new products development and

promotional campaigns for our corporate image and products,

would improve the Group’s profit and turnover volume.

Apart from active development, the Group also underwent

corporate restructuring to lower operation costs. In 2006, the

Group had disposed two subsidiaries engaged in non-core

businesses. In respect of internal management, the Group

continued to exercise rigorous cost control measures and

streamlined and systematized our corporate management

procedures in areas such as product planning, quality assurance

and staff training. We believe that those measures will create a

solid foundation for the Group’s long-term development.

:

6,591,000

17.5%

2
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Shine Software (Holdings) Limited

China Leason Investment

Group Co., Limited

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND BUSINESS
EXPANSION
On 1 June 2006, the directors proposed to change the

Company’s name from “Shine Software (Holdings) Limited 

” into “China Leason Investment Group Co.,

Limited ”, in order to diversify the

Group’s business into other fields includes but not limited to

energy development. On 29 June 2006, the special resolution

for approving the name change was duly approved by the

shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the

Company. Following this change, the Group will become more

active in the research and development of new businesses.

OUTLOOK
The advantage of the continuous development of China’s

securities market and the a launch of new clearing products,

coupled with the Group’s leading position in the research and

development of software solutions for China’s finance and

securities industry, we are optimistic about the Group’s outlook

in the business of research and development of software solutions

for China’s finance and securities industry. Meanwhile, the Group

is active in the research of new investment projects. It is expected

that a number of promising businesses will be introduced in the

near future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would also like this opportunity

to express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers

and business associates for their continuous support to the

Group.

Wang Zhong Sheng

Chairman

28 March 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
MARKET REVIEW
In this year, the Group mainly focused on the research and
development of software solutions for the finance and securities
industry in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). China’s
securities market saw a market growth in 2006, with the
composite indices for both stock markets kept soaring throughout
the year. In particular, the Shanghai composite index increased
from 1163.88 on 1 January 2006 (the first trading day of the
year) to 2675.47 on 29 December 2006 (the last trading day of
the year). During the same period, the Shenzhen index raised
from 2873.53 to 6647.14. On 18 May 2006, the China Securities
Regulatory Commission released the new management
mechanism for Initial Public Offer (“IPO”), reactivating IPO
activities. By the end of 2006, there were 15 and 55 new listing
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen counterpart
respectively. The frequent IPOs stimulated investor’s investment
passion resulting in an active market which benefited business
development of securities companies.

Meanwhile, the regulatory bodies has been constantly increasing
its regulatory power over securities companies, and grade
securities companies based on their risk prevention capability
and business development, etc., so as to screen out quality
companies. As a result, the competitiveness of quality securities
companies will be strengthened continuously. Currently, the
number of the innovative type and the regulatory type of securities
companies is accounting for nearly half of the total in the PRC.
Following further segmentation and optimization of securities
companies’ clients, the Group’s competitive strength as a provider
of professional information technology for the securities industry
will become more prominent. This will also drive the Group’s
business development.

In respect of market share, the Group remains the leader of the
industry that focuses on the research and development of
software solutions for the finance and securities industry in the
PRC. With the exception of a few giant securities companies
which develop their own trading platforms, most securities
companies in China are still using the Group’s platform products
as trading platform. Therefore, the Group would directly benefit
from the rapid development of the Chinese stock market.

1163.88

2675.47 2873.53
6647.14

2006
15

55
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60%

10,404,000

  
6.0

RESTRUCTURING
Furthermore, in order to optimize the Group’s internal structure
and lower operation costs, Shanghai Xingyishi Management
Consulting Company Limited (“Xingyishi”), 60% interest of which
was owned by the Group, has ceased its operation during the
year. Xingyisi was principally engaged in the provision of computer
and management consultancy services. Since its operation has
gradually ceased, the Directors considered that the disposal of
operations of Xinyishi will be beneficial to the Group in respect of
resource consolidation and development objectives.

The Directors consider the Group has competitive advantage in
areas relating to securities clearing business and capital market
related-clearance, and most of the Group’s clients are engaging
in securities and other financial business. The Company’s
subsidiary, Shenzhen Yinqitong Technology Limited (Shenzhen
Yinqitong”), which mainly targets large corporation as its
customers showed no significant improvements after operations
for more than a year. In addition, given its business was apparently
different from major business of the Group, thus the Group’s
competitive edges and client bases could not be effectively
utilized, after careful consideration by the Board, the Group
disposed Shenzhen Yinqitong to an independent third party
during the year. The Directors considerd that the disposal of the
subsidiary has no material effect to the overall business of the
Group.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
Dur ing  the  year,  the  Group inves ted approx imate ly
RMB10,404,000 in product development, which was mainly used
for the existing products and the securities business platform.

During the year, the Group continued to recruit people with
relevant expertise to enhance its integrated capabilities on
research, development and product implementation.

In light of the ever-changing securities information technology
industry, it is crucial that the Group reviews its development
projects regularly. During the last year the Group actively invested
in the development of products with huge potential. Among these,
the Board considers that the Shine Securities Integrated
Management Platform 6.0, a new generation of clearing platform,
is with the greatest potential. Its development was completed
on schedule and it was launched before the end of the year. The
Group will continue product development and system integration
in response to customer demand and the outcome of market
research.
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4,800,000

To cope with the increased demand on maintenance and repair,
on 29 January 2007 the Group purchased from an independent
third party a system that integrates various applications (including
providing network monitoring and security, collecting the
network’s operation data and storing the data in an integrated
database, analyzing the network’s operation data and generating
analysis reports) at a consideration of RMB4,800,000. This
system allows the Group to automate several maintenance and
repair tasks, and to reduce the time technicians need to spend
on clients’ maintenance and repair services. The details of this
transaction were set out in the circular dated 7 February 2007.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
TURNOVER
Turnover by business operations for the two consecutive year
ended 31 December 2006 was summarised as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of software 16,387 23,732
Sales of hardware 764  2,341
Maintenances and

other services fee 8,622 5,173

Total 25,773  31,246

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of RMB25,773,000
for the year, representing a decrease of approximately 17.5%
compared with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to:

• Development cycle of Products: the Group’s new product,
the Shine Securities Integrated Management Platform 6.0,
was launched in the forth quarter of the year to replace
its older version. The transitional period between new and
old products resulted in a decrease of sales volume,
especially the sale volume in the forth quarter;

• Since the Shine Securities Integrated Management
Platform 6.0 was just launched in the forth quarter of 2006,
most installation and testing tasks and handover were
still pending following sales. Therefore, many signed sales
contracts were yet to be booked.

25,773,000 17.5%

  
6.0   

5.0

6.0
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6,591,000
938,000

59.7%
65.6%

Loss at t r ibutable to shareholders was approx imate ly
RMB6,591,000, compared with profit attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB938,000 for last year, mainly due to:

• gross profit margin for the year was approximately 59.7%,
compared with approximately 65.6% for last year resulting
from downward adjustment of selling price of the Group’s
products in response to competition in the securities
clearing software market;

• In connection with the launch of the new product and the
promotion of the Group’s corporate image, there was an
increase in promotional and product launch expenses;

• In order to expand new business, the Group invested part
of the resources in the feasibility study of the expansion
of new businesses and therefore, incurred an increase in
administrative expense; and

• An increase in directors’ remuneration.

OTHER REVENUES
The major revenue was the tax refund on value added tax for the
sales and distribution of the Group’s own software. The amount
was similar to that of last year.

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
The cost of market promotion was the major expense. In order
to promote the new product and the Group’s corporate image,
the implementation of a series of marketing campaigns resulted
in increased distribution expenses.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Professional and office expenditures were the major elements.
These costs saw an increase compared with that of last year,
mainly due to:

• In order to expand new business, the Group invested part
of the resources in the feasibility study of the expansion
of new businesses, and therefore, incurred additional
administrative expenses;

• An increase in directors’ remuneration; and

• The opening of two new offices in Beijing and Tinjian,
respectively, resulted in an increase of expenditure in
relation to rental and salaries, etc.
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7,214,000
8,683,000

3,700,000

483,000
2,517,000

42,328,000
15,009,000

19

13

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
The  o the r  ope ra t i ng  expenses  were  approx imate l y
RMB7,214,000 in the year, whi le i t  was approximately
RMB8,683,000 in the previous year, and the decrease was mainly
due to the net effect of:

• A decrease in provision for bad and doubtful debts based
on ageing from approximately RMB3,700,000 in 2005 to
Nil in 2006;

• A increase in impairment of intangible assets from
approximately RMB483,000 in 2005 to RMB2,517,000
in 2006.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31st December 2006, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB42,328,000, including total cash, bank and
deposits balances of approximately RMB15,009,000. The Group
has implemented disciplined financial and risk managements.
The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by dividing Group’s total
external borrowings by its shareholders fund, was zero. Further,
the Group had not charged on any of its assets as at 31st
December 2006.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any material
transactions or significant investment which are classified as
notifiable transactions as defined under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
Most of the Group’s operating transactions, assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in either Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar,
The Directors believes that Renminbi will remain relatively stable
against Hong Kong dollar in the foreseeable future and considers
the Group’s present exposure to exchange risk is relatively
minimal. Currently, no financial arrangements have been
implemented for hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the Directors
will closely monitor and from time to time reassess the exchange
risk exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative
hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The segmental information of the Group was disclosed in note
13 to the financial statements.
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200 117
24

16,603,000 15,980,000

EMPLOYEES
As a software solution provider, people are the Group’s most
valuable assets. Accordingly, human resources framework is one
of the Group’s critical strategic policies.

The Group is a “people-oriented” and “equal opportunity”
employer whereas its staff selection and promotion process will
only be determined with reference to employees’ own merits and
their competency in relation to their responsibility. Employee
remuneration includes basic salaries and benefits-in-kind such
as medical and insurance coverage, retirement benefits scheme,
and other discretionary incentives etc.

Employee remuneration is maintained at market competitive level
and will be regularly reviewed within the general framework of
the Group’s human resources system. Remuneration policy is
basically determined with reference to individual performance as
well as financial results of the Group which will be revised from
time to time when performances of staff is warranted.

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had an aggregate of 200
employees, of which 117 were research and development staff,
24 were engineering and customer service staff. Staff cost,
inc lud ing d i rectors ’  emoluments,  was approx imate ly
RMB16,603,000 (2005: RMB15,980,000) for the year ended
31 December 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(a) Appl icat ion  of  Corporate  Gover nance

Principles
The Group is committed to promoting good corporate

governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of

responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in

t ransparency and d isc losure o f  in format ion to

shareholders, (iii) the continuance of respect for the rights

of shareholders and the recognition of the legitimate

interests of shareholders, and (iv) the improvement in

management of risk and the enhancement of performance

by the Group. The Group has applied the principles set

out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

(“HKSE Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth

Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) with these objectives in

mind.

(b) Promulgat ion of  Company’s Corporate
Governance Code
To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of Code on

Corporate Governance (“Company Code”) which sets out

the corporate standards and practices used by the Group

to direct and manage its business affairs. It is prepared

by referencing to the principles, code provisions and

recommended best practices set out in the HKSE Code,

which came into effect on 1 January 2005. In addition to

formalizing existing corporate governance principles and

practices, the Company Code also serves the purpose of

assimi lat ing exist ing pract ices with benchmarks

prescribed by the HKSE Code and ultimately ensuring

high transparency and accountability to the Group’s

shareholders.

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(b)
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(c) Compliance of Company and HKSE’s Code’s
Provisions
The Group has complied with all provisions in the

Company Code and the HKSE Code with the deviations

mentioned below.

On 12 August 2005, the Company set up the following

board committees and adopted the company code, being

its own code on corporate governance:—

(a) Remuneration Committee;

(b) Nomination Committee.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of

the HKSE Code and other provisions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding

directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than

those as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors of the Company,

all directors have complied with the required standard of dealings

and code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

directors as set out in the code of conduct for the year 2006.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is entrusted

with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the

Company by the direction and supervision of the Company’s

business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with two Executive

Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) and Mr.

Shi Liang; three Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chang Jian,

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Ye Jinxing and three Independent

Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang

Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang Yuk Fong has

appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial

management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

(c)

(a)

(b)

5.48 5.67
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an

annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of

the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent

Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set

out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent

in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

APPOINTMENT TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision of the HKSE Code non-executive directors

should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.

Currently, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-

executive Directors have no set term of office but are subject to

retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

ROLES OF DIRECTORS
The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of

the Company and is collectively responsible for appointing and

supervising senior management to ensure that the operations of

the Group are conducted in accordance with the objectives of

the Group. The principal roles of the Board are:

• to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies

and business plan;

• to monitor and control operating and financial performance

through the determination of the annual budget; and

• to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of

the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is

responsible for preparing the accounts.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management

responsibility to the management staff under the instruction/

supervision of the Board.

5.09

5.09
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The management staff of the Company are principally responsible

for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other

acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors,

save and except for those that may specifically be reserved

by the Board/or thee committees set up by the Board for

decision and implementation; or those that may only be

exercised by the Board pursuant to the memorandum and

articles of association of the Company, the GEM Listing

Rules and other applicable Laws and regulations.

2. formulating and implementing policies for business

actives, internal controls and administration of the

Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its

business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which

may be inspected by any members of the Board or the

Board committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to

ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO”)
Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles of

chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be

performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does

not comply with such Code Provision since the company does

not have any person holding the title of CEO. Mr. Wang Zhong

Sheng is the Chairman of the Board and is also performing the

functions of CEO. The Board meets regularly to consider major

matters affecting the business and operations of the Group. The

Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of

power and authority between the Board and management and

believes that this structure enables the Group to make and

implement decision promptly and efficiently.

1.

2.

3.

4.

A.2.1
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BOARD OPERATION
Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months,

with additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In 2006,

the Board held 17 meetings. The attendance record of each

member of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors Attendance

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) (appointed on 16 May 2006) 6/17

Mr. Shi Liang (appointed on 16 May 2006) 6/17

Mr. Ye Jinxing (redesignated as non-executive director
on 16 May 2006) 10/17

Ms Gu Yun (resigned on 16 May 2006) 11/17

Mr. Qiu Yixin (resigned on 16 May 2006) 10/17

Mr. Chen Yunrong (resigned on 16 May 2006) 10/17

Ms. Li Xiaoyuan (resigned on 16 May 2006) 7/17

Mr. Jiang Yulai (resigned on 16 May 2006) 8/17

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chang Jian (appointed on 16 May 2006) 2/17

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim (appointed on 16 May 2006) 2/17

Mr. Ye Jinxing (redesignated as non-executive director
on 16 May 2006) 10/17

Mr. Chen Qun (resigned on 16 May 2006) 8/17

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Luo Wei Kun (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/17

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/17

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/17

Mr. Choy Tak Ho (resigned on 15 August 2006) 8/17

Mr. Liu Bo (resigned on 15 August 2006) 1/17

Mr. Sin Ka Man (resigned on 15 August 2006) 10/17
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Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and

major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board

meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of

interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or

issues to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of

meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are kept by the

Company Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is

responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied

with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

DIRECTORS’ DUTIES
Every Director is kept abreast of his responsibilities as a director

of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and

development of the Company:

• A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every

Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making

reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the

GEM Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their

responsibilities in making disclosure of their interests and

potential conflict of interests.

• Orientation programmes are organised for providing

induction to new Directors to help them familiarise with

the Company’s management, business and governance

practices.

• Management provides appropriate and suff ic ient

information to Directors and the committee members in a

timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest

development of the Group and enable them to discharge

their responsibilities. Directors also have independent and

unrestricted access to senior executives of the Company.
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CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding

securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting

than the required standard of dealings as referred to in Rules

5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, having

made specific enquiries to its directors and supervisors, confirms

that, throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2006, all

directors and supervisors met the criteria laid down in the said

code for securities transactions by directors.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
As mentioned above, a remuneration committee was established

on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes:—

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and

structure for remuneration of directors and senior

management and on the establishment of a formal and

transparent procedure for developing policy on such

remuneration;

(b) to determine the remuneration packages for executive

directors and senior management and to make

recommendations to the board on the remuneration of

non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s

Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. The

duty of Remuneration Committee is to review and determine the

remuneration policy and packages of the executive directors and

executives.

5.48 5.67

(a)

(b)
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In 2006, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The

attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out

below:

Attendance

Mr. Luo Wei Kun (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Mr. Sin Ka Man (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

Mr. Choy Tak Ho (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

Mr. Liu Bo (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

At the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee

reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the

Directors by taking into account factors such as remuneration

packages and benefits offered by comparable companies, the

respective contribution of each of the Directors to the Group

and the business objectives of the Group.

The Executive Directors of the Company is responsible for

reviewing all relevant remuneration data and market conditions

as well as the performance of individuals and the profitability of

the Group, and proposing to the Remuneration Committee for

consideration and approval, remuneration packages for the

executive directors and executives.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
As mentioned above, a Nomination Committee was established

on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes:—

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including

the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board

members and make recommendations to the Board on

the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant

matters relating to the appointment or reappointment of

directors and succession planning for directors.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s

Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luo Wei Kun,

Mr. Yan Cheng Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.

In 2006, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The

attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out

below:

Attendance

Mr. Luo Wei Kun (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (appointed on 15 August 2006) 1/1

Mr. Sin Ka Man (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

Mr. Choy Tak Ho (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

Mr. Liu Bo (resigned on 15 August 2006) 0/1

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the

structure, size and composition of the Company’s Board of

Directors, makes reference to criteria including, inter alia,

reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience in the

relevant industry, professional and educational background, and

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest.

The Nomination Committee was satisfied with the existing

composit ion of the Company’s Board of Directors and

recommended no change in the near term.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 28 July

2003 and is currently composed of all three Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,

Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman). The

primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s

annual reports, financial statements, interim reports and quarterly

reports; (b) To serve as a focal point for communication between

Directors, the external auditors and internal auditors; (c) To assist

the Board in fulf i l l ing its responsibil it ies by providing an

independent review and supervision of financial reporting, and

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system; and (d)

To review the appointment of external auditors on an annual basis

as well as to ensure independence of the continuing auditor.

In 2006, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The attendance

record of each member of the Committee is set out below:

Attendance

Mr. Luo Wei Kun (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/4

Mr. Yan Chong Ming (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/4

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (Chairman) (appointed on 15 August 2006) 2/4

Mr. Sin Ka Man (resigned on 15 August 2006) 2/4

Mr. Choy Tak Ho (resigned on 15 August 2006) 2/4

Mr. Liu Bo (resigned on 15 August 2006) 1/4

At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the

Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system

of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them.

The Committee also carried out and discharged its other duties

set out in HKSE Code. In the course of doing so, the Committee

has met the company’s management and qualified accountant

several times during 2006. Each member of the Audit Committee

has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditors and the

Management.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of

the annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s

state of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In

preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006,

the Directors have:

• adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently; and

• made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a

going concern basis.

The company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is

important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the

company and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a

balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the

Company’s performance, position and prospects in all corporate

communications. The annual, interim and quarterly results of the

Company are announced in a timely manner within the required

limits after the end of the relevant periods.

Internal Control
The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the

effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over

financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2006.

The Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Company

has set up a sound control environment and installed necessary

control mechanisms to monitor and correct noncompliance. The

Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied

that the Group in 2006, fully complied with the code provisions

on internal controls as set forth in the Code.
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External Auditors
The Group’s external auditors are CCIF CPA Limited. The Audit

Committee is mandated to ensure continuing auditors’ objectivity

and safeguard independence of the auditors, and it has:

• determined the framework for the type and authorisation

of non-audit services for which the external auditors may

provide. In general, the engagement of the external

auditors to perform non-audit services is prohibited except

for tax related services; and

• agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring

of employees or former employees of the external auditors

and monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2006, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditors

for audit services amounted to RMB385,000 and for non-audit

related activities amounted to RMB50,000.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly involved

in the Group’s statutory audit.

Corporate Communication
The Group recognizes the importance of shareholder feedback

and the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders,

including the general public, investors, and the institutional and

individual shareholders. The Company published annual, interim

and quarterly reports which contained detailed information about

the Group. Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with

by senior management of the Group.

385,000

50,000
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DIRECTOR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 43, has been

appointed as Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and

the compliance officer of the Company since May 2006. From 9

January 2004 to 26 May 2006, Mr. Wang was an executive

director of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited

(“Tianjin Tianlian”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise

Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8290), and was

responsible for its business strategies. He graduated from the

University of Tainjin with a bachelor degree in engineering in 1984.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin Leason Investment Group

Company Limited ( ). Mr. Wang is

a director of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and is beneficially

interested in 86% of the entire issued share capital of Jumbo

Lane Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the

company which holds 354,750,000 Shares, representing

approximately 75% of the issued share capital of the Company

as at the date of this report. Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to

be interested in these 354,750,000 Shares under the SFO.

Mr. Shi Liang (“Mr. Shi”), aged 38, has been appointed as an

executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a

bachelor degree in Material Science in the Shanghai University

of Science and Technology of the PRC and a master degree in

management from the Business School of the People’s University

in the PRC. He was a vice general manager of Tianjin Tianlian.

He had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong Electric Melter Company

and Electronic Industrial Division Basic Products Department.

He had also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong Electronic Group

Company as deputy manager of international cooperation

department and secretary to the board of directors. He had also

held various positions as a project manager, senior manager and

an assistant to executive director in the investment banking of

United Securities Limited, a securities company in the PRC.

43

8290  

 

86% 354,750,000

 

75%

354,750,000

38
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Ye Jinxing, aged 39, has been a director of the Company

since July 2002 and was redesigned as a non-executive Director

on 16 May 2006. He is a senior economist. He joined the Group

in October 2000 and has been in charge of the Group’s overall

financial management, strategic capital planning and treasury

functions of the Group. Mr. Ye previously held various managerial

positions at the Quanzhou City Branch of Industrial and

Commercial Bank of China in Fujian Province from 1990 to 1994

and Minfa Securities Company Limited from 1994 to 1999. Mr.

Ye has over 13 years of experience and in-depth knowledge in

domestic banking, capital and money markets. Mr. Ye was

awarded a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Jiangxi

College of Finance and Economics in 1990.

Mr. Chang Jian (“Mr. Chang”), aged 42, has been appointed as a

non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr Chang is currently a

supervisor of Tianjin Tianlian and has been working in its

corporate management department. Mr. Chang graduated from

the Beijing Technical College of Economics ( ) with

concentration on Safe Engineering studies. Mr. Chang is a director

of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and owns 7% interest in

Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 32, has been appointed

as a non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Kwok is currently

the company secretary and chief financial officer of Tianjin

Tianlian. Mr. Kwok graduated from the Hong Kong University of

Science and Technology and also obtained a master degree in

China Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic

University. Mr. Kwok has experience in the field of audit, corporate

finance and financial management, Mr. Kwok is a director of

Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and owns 7% interest in Jumbo

Lane Investments Limited.

39

13

42

7%

32

7%
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 67, has been a director of the Company

since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University

with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1964 and started

postgraduate studies in the same year. He was awarded a

postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He acted as a

technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine Industrial

Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy section

chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the State

Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch during

1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section

chief and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas

Factory during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a

vice chief engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same

time, worked as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative

Office. After his retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a

consultant of Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin

City Gas Planning Office. Currently, he is an independent non-

executive director of Tianjin Tianlian.

Mr. Yan Changming, aged 43, has been a director of the Company

since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University

with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1986. He

also obtained a master degree in chemical engineering from the

Tsinghua University and University of Ottawa in 1989 and 1994,

respectively. Since 1994, he has been acting as the President of

Canada Cadavisa Investment Consulting Inc. Currently, he is the

vice president and secretary general of the Chamber of

Commerce of Chinese Western Returned Association and the

Canada Branch of Chinese Western Returned Association. He

is also the vice secretary general of all Federation of Returned

Oversea Chinese.

67

43
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Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, aged 40, has been a director of the Company

since August 2006. She is an experienced practicing certified

public accountant in Hong Kong with over 18 years’ professional

experience in the accounting and auditing. She is a fellow member

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and

the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms.

Pang holds a master of professional accounting degree from the

Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Pang’s professional career

started in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She has been the principal

partner in Y. F. Pang & Co., Certified Public Accountants since

1990’s and the managing director of AMC First Plan International

Limited which is engaged in business advisory services in the

Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed by the Cuilong

Copper International Holding Limited in 2006 as its independent

non-executive director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Gu Yun, aged 55, was the division head of software

development. Ms. Gu graduated from the Xiamen University in

1985 majoring in finance in the Department of Finance and

Banking. She joined the Group in December 1997 and assumes

responsibility for strategic planning and business development

of the Group. Before joining the Group, Ms. Gu worked in the

Fujian Branch of the People’s Bank of China from 1976 to 1992

and had been a vice general manager in Fujian Securities Trading

Centre. Ms. Gu has good and extensive business connections

and has a broad range of experiences in the domestic securities

and banking industries dating back to 1980s.

Mr. Lam Kit Sun, aged 30, has been appointed as the company

secretary, qualified accountant and authorized representative of

the Company since May 2006. Mr. Lam is an associate member

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the

Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a member

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and

Institute of Internal Auditors. He graduated with a bachelor degree

in accounting from Hong Kong University of Science and

Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam has over 7 years

of experience in auditing and had worked in an international

accountancy firm in Hong Kong for over 4 years.

40

18

90

Cuilong Copper International Holding Limited

55

30

7

4
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The directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited

(the “Company”) present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2006.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME
Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary

meeting held on 29 June 2006, the name of the Company was

changed from Shine Software (Holdings) Limited to China Leason

Investment Group Co., Limited.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 44.

.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31

December 2006 are set out in the balance sheets on pages 45

and 46 respectively. The cash flows of the Group are set out in

the consolidated cash flow statement on pages 49 and 50.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment

of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

17

44

45 46

49 50

27

28

14
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company who held office during the year

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) (appointed on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Shi Liang (appointed on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Ye Jinxing (redesignated as non-executive director on 16 May 2006)

Ms. Gu Yun (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Qiu Yixin (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Chen Yunrong (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Ms. Li Xiaoyuan (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Jiang Yulai (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chang Jian (appointed on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Ye Jinxing (redesignated as non-executive director on 16 May 2006)

Mr. Chen Qun (resigned on 16 May 2006)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun (appointed on 15 August 2006)

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (appointed on 15 August 2006)

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (appointed on 15 August 2006)

Mr. Choy Tak Ho (resigned on 15 August 2006)

Mr. Liu Bo (resigned on 15 August 2006)

Mr. Sin Ka Man (resigned on 15 August 2006)
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In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of

association, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang

Yuk Fong shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 27

to page 30 of this report.

CHANGES OF EXECUTIVES
The following changes of executives occurred during the year:

1. Mr. Lam Kit Sun has been appointed as company

secretary, authorised representative and qualif ied

accountant of the Company with effect from 16 May 2006;

and

2. Mr. Cheung Kwok Yee, Franics has resigned as company

secretary, authorised representative, qualified accountant

and compliance officer of the Company with effect from

16 May 2006.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors has a service contract with the Company

or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval

at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the

Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

87

27 30

1.

2.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE
(i) There was no transaction which need to be disclosed as

connected transact ions in accordance with the

requirements of Chapter 20 of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange

(the “GEM Listing Rules”); and

(ii) No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s

business subsisted at the year-end or any time during

the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was a party and in which a director of the Company had

a material interest, whether directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS
None of the directors of the Company or the management

shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates

(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business

which causes or may cause any significant competition with the

business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’  AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 31 December 2006, the interests of the Director and chief

executive of the Company and each of their respective associates

(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules), in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any

associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which (a) were

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including

interests or short positions which such Director or chief executive

is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);

or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,

pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating

to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i)

20

(ii)

XV

(a)

XV 7 8

(b)

352

(c)

5.46 5.67
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(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the
Company:

Number of shares/ Approximate %
Name Capacity Nature of Interest underlying shares of shareholdings

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 354,750,000 75%
corporation (Note)

Note: Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments

Limited.

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 86% interest in the issued

share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and

he is taken to be interested in the shares owned by

Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to Part XV of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of

the Laws of Hong Kong).

(2) Long posit ion in shares of  associated
corporations of the Company:

Percentage of
interests inthe registered

capital of the
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of Interest associated corporation

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 86%
(Note)

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 7%

Mr. Chang Jian Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 7%

Note: Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company

of the Group, owns 75% of the shareholding of the

Group. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 86% interest in

the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments

Limited. Mr. Chang Jian and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim each

own 7% in the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane

Investments Limited.

(1)

86

571 XV

(2)

75

86

7
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware,

as at the 31 December 2006, none of the Directors and

the chief executive of the Company and each of their

respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing

Rules) had any interest or short position in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any

associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions

7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short

positions which the Director or chief executive is taken or

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)

were required, pursuant section 352 of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were

required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at the 31 December 2006, so far as is known to the

Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the

following persons, other than a Director or chief executive

of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the

Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly or

indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value

of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member

of the Group, or held any option in respect of such capital:

Long positions in shares

Percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

Jumbo Lane 354,750,000 Beneficial owner 75%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

1

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 2) 354,750,000 Interest of spouse 75%

2

XV

(a)

XV 7 8

(b)

352

(c)

5.48 5.67

(3)

XV 2 3

10
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Notes:

1. The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Wang

Zhong Sheng in the paragraph headed “Directors’

interests” and Chief Executive’s Interests or short portions

in shares, underlying shares and debentures interests

above.

2. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is

deemed to be interested in her spouse’s interest in the

Company which represent the same parcel of Shares

held by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to

the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to

the Directors and the chief executive of the Company,

other than the Directors or the chief executive of the

Company, who, as at 31 December 2006, had an interest

or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares

which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,

or who was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more

of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying

rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any other member of the Group or held any option in

respect of such capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of

the Company on 28 July 2003, the Company adopted a share

option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) with a life of 10

years commencing from its adoption date. The principal terms

of the Share Option Scheme have been set out in the Company’s

2003 Annual Report.

On 6 July 2004, a total of 20,000,000 share options were granted

to certain Directors and employees of the Group under the Share

Option Scheme.

As at 23 March 2006, the Company had 15,130,000 outstanding

share options held by 23 optionholders entitling holders thereof

to subscribe for in aggregate 15,130,000 new Shares at an

exercise price of HK$0.256 per Share at any time up to 5 July

2008.

1.

2.

XV

2 3

10

20,000,000

15,130,000 23

0.256 15,130,000
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Pursuant to the “JOINT ANNOUNCEMENT of (1) Acquisition of

shares in China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (formerly

known as “Shine Software (Holdings) Limited”) by Jumbo Lane

Investments Limited (“Jumbo Lane”) and (2) Possible mandatory

unconditional cash offers by Watterson Asia Limited (“Watterson

Asia”) on behalf of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited to acquire

all the issued shares and to cancel all outstanding share options

of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited” published on

30 March 2006 and the announcement of “Composite Offer and

Response Document relating to Mandatory Unconditional Cash

Offers by Watterson Asia Limited on behalf of Jumbo Lane

Investments Limited to acquire all the issued shares and to cancel

all outstanding share options of China Leason Investment Group

Co., Limited” published on 25 April 2006, Watterson Asia, on

behalf of the Jumbo Land Investments Limited (“Jumbo Lane”)

made an unconditional offer to pay to the optionholders a nominal

consideration of HK$0.0001 in cash in respect of every share

option to which the optionholders are entitled to subscribe under

the share options held by them, in consideration for the surrender

to the Company by the relevant holders of all of the existing rights

attaching to their share options. By accepting the option offer,

optionholders will renounce and agree to the cancellation of

relevant share options.

On 16 May 2006, Jumbo Lane has received valid acceptances

in respect of a total of 11,890,000 Share Options out of the total

15,130,000 outstanding Share Options under the Option Offer.

As the remaining 3,240,000 Share Options had not been

exercised within one month from 7 April 2006, those Share

Options lapsed automatically thereafter in accordance with the

terms of the share option scheme of the Company.

As at 31 December 2006, the Company has no outstanding share

option.

 (1)

(2)

0.0001

15,130,000

11,890,000

3,240,000
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Movement of the Share Option scheme during the year are set

out below:

Number of share options

Exercise At Forfeited At Company’s

price 1 January during 31 December share price at

Participants Date of grant per share 2006 year 2006 date of grant

(Note 1) (HK$) (Note 2)

(HK$)

1 2

Directors 6 July 2004 0.256 1,410,000 (1,410,000) — 0.24

Other employees

In aggregate 6 July 2004

0.256 16,520,000 (16,520,000) — 0.24

Total share

options granted

17,930,000 (17,930,000) —

Notes:

1. The exercise period of these share options is three years

commencing from one year immediately after the date of grant

and terminating three years thereafter. The share options are

vested in different tranches (some of which are conditional).

2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of

grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange’s closing price

on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of

the share options.

1

2
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share options disclosed above, at no time during

the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to

any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executive of

the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate, and none of the directors, or their spouses or children

under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities

of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group

together accounted for approximately 18.2% of the Group’s total

sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted

for approximately 5.0% of the Group’s total sales during the year.

Whereas external purchase, mainly arising from its hardware

resale operations, only accounted for about 5.9% of the Group’s

cost of sales during the year, the top five suppliers of the Group

for the year under review together accounted for approximately

92.8% of the Group’s total purchases for the year and the single

largest supplier accounted for approximately 73.2% of the

Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any

shareholders of the Company who owns more than 5% of the

issued share capital of the Company has any interests in the

Group’s five largest customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at

31 December 2006.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are

set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

18

18.2%

5.0%

5.9%

92.8%

73.2%

5%

30
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS
The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, warrants

or instruments carrying other similar rights as at 31 December

2006

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2006 neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed Shares.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF

CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng

Chairman

28 March 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
S H A R E H O L D E R S  O F  C H I N A  L E A S O N
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China

Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 119 which

comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at

31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement,

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the

consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and

a summary of signif icant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing

and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and

the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely

to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong

Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

44 119
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In

making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropr iateness of  account ing pol ic ies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true

and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of the

Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s loss and

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2007

Kwok Cheuk Yuen

Practising Certificate Number P02412 P02412
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2006 2005

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 5 & 13 25,773 31,246

Cost of sales (10,379) (10,748)

Gross profit 15,394 20,498

Other revenue 6 4,330 3,255

Other net income 6 1,518 185

Distribution costs (7,741) (4,266)

Administrative expenses (12,905) (9,590)

Other operating expenses (7,214) (8,683)

(Loss)/profit before income tax 7 (6,618) 1,399

Income tax 8(a) 27 (461)

(Loss)/profit for the year (6,591) 938

Attributable to:

Equity holders

of the Company 11, 28(a) (6,591) 938

Minority interests 28(a) — —

(Loss)/profit for the year (6,591) 938

Dividend — —

RMB (cents) RMB (cents)

(Loss)/earnings per share 12

Basic (1.39) 0.20

The notes on pages 51 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

51 119
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At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2006 2005

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14(a) 3,710 4,157
Land lease prepayments 15 1,568 1,655
Intangible assets 16 12,625 10,597

17,903 16,409

Current assets
Trading securities 18 2,992 1,753
Inventories 19 120 121
Trade and other receivables 20 20,195 8,598
Land lease prepayments 15 87 87
Tax recoverable 21 794 1,046
Cash and cash equivalents 22 15,009 32,018

39,197 43,623

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 12,645 7,271
Deferred income 24 1,616 1,546
Taxation payable 25 70 997

14,331 9,814

Net current assets 24,866 33,809

Total assets less current 42,769 50,218
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 26(a) (441) (837)

NET ASSETS 42,328 49,381

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 27 5,014 5,014
Reserves 28(a) 37,314 44,212

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 42,328 49,226

Minority interests — 155

TOTAL EQUITY 42,328 49,381

The notes on pages 51 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
51 119

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 March 2007.

Director Director
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At 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2006 2005

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 14(b) 382 52

Investments in subsidiaries 17 6,018 19

6,400 71

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

20 20,330 31,063

Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,373 754

21,703 31,817

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

23 4,143 596

Net current assets 17,560 31,221

NET ASSETS 23,960 31,292

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 27 5,014 5,014

Reserves 28(b) 18,946 26,278

TOTAL EQUITY 23,960 31,292

The notes on pages 51 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
51 119

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 March 2007.

Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Common
General welfare Share

Share Share Merger reserve reserve option Translation Retained Minority
capital premium reserve fund fund reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2005,
as previously
reported 5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 2,171 1,055 — — 6,786 47,520 — 47,520

Effect of retrospective
adjustments upon
changes in
accounting policies — — — — — 234 — (234 ) — 155 155

5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 2,171 1,055 234 — 6,552 47,520 155 47,675

Effect of prospective
adjustment upon
changes in 3
accounting policies

— HKFRS 3 — — — — — — — 472 472 — 472

At 1 January 2005,
as restated 5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 2,171 1,055 234 7,024 47,992 155 48,147

Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements
of foreign entities — — — — — — (97 ) — (97 ) — (97 )

Profit for the year — — — — — — — 938 938 — 938

Profit appropriations — — — 732 366 — — (1,098 ) — — —

Total recognised
income and
expenses for the year — — — 732 366 — (97 ) (160 ) 841 — 841

Employee share option
benefits — — — — — 393 — — 393 — 393

Forfeiture of employee
share options — — — — — (24 ) — 24 — — —
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Common
General welfare Share

Share Share Merger reserve reserve option Translation Retained Minority
capital premium reserve fund fund reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 31 December 2005
and 1 January 2006,
as previously
reported

5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 2,903 1,421 603 (97 ) 6,888 49,226 155 49,381

Transfer to general
reserve fund
(note 28 (a)) 28(a) — — — 1,421 (1,421 ) — — — — — —

At 1 January 2006,
as restated 5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 4,324 — 603 (97 ) 6,888 49,226 155 49,381

Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements
of foreign entities — — — — — — (307 ) — (307 ) — (307 )

Loss for the year — — — — — — — (6,591 ) (6,591 ) — (6,591 )

Profit appropriations — — — 106 — — — (106 ) — — —

Total recognised
income and expenses
for the year — — — 106 — — (307 ) (6,697 ) (6,898 ) — (6,898 )

Forfeiture of employee
share options — — — — — (603 ) — 603 — — —

Disposal of subsidiaries — — — — — — — — — (155 ) (155 )

At 31 December 2006
5,014 34,845 (2,351 ) 4,430 — — (404 ) 794 42,328 — 42,328

The notes on pages 51 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

51 119
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2006 2005

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax (6,618) 1,399
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 1,356 1,106
Impairment loss for bad and

doubtful debts — 3,700
Amortisation of land lease

prepayments 87 87
Amortisation of intangible

assets 5,859 5,450
Impairment loss on intangible

assets 2,517 483
Employee share option benefits — 393
Interest income (268) (234 )
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (160) —
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 2 134
Net realised and unrealised

gains on listed equity
securities carried at market
value (1,518) (185 )

Operating profit before
changes in working capital 1,257 12,333

Decrease/(increase) in inventories 1 (52 )
Increase in trade receivables,

deposits and prepayments (6,910) (1,286)
Increase in amount due to

a director 1,549 —
Increase in creditors and

accrued charges 3,949 1,832
Increase in deferred income 70 690

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations (84) 13,517

Tax paid
PRC enterprise income tax paid (1,296) (229 )
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2006 2005

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Net cash (used in)/from
operating activities (1,380) 13,288

Investing activities
Payment for purchase of

property, plant and equipment (1,179) (1,416)
Proceeds from sales of property,

plant and equipment 233 32
Expenditure on development

projects (10,404) (3,079)
Payment for purchase of trading

securities (86,805) (2,250)
Proceeds from sales of trading

securities 87,084 682
Proceeds from sales of

subsidiaries 34 965 —
(Increase)/decrease in amounts

due from securities broker firms (5,485) 4,559
Interest income received 268 234

Net cash used in investing
activities (15,323) (1,238)

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents (16,703) 12,050

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January 32,018 20,071

Effect of change in foreign
currency translation (306) (103)

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December 22 15,009 32,018

The notes on pages 51 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

51 119
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For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (formerly

known as Shine Software (Holdings) Limited (the

“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company

with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002

under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as

consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise

Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the

registered office and principal place of business of the

Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”

section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company is investment

holding and of its subsidiaries (the Company and its

subsidiaries are hereafter collectively referred as the

“Group”) are the development of computer software,

resale of hardware, provision of system integration and

maintenance.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with al l  appl icable Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which

collective term includes all applicable individual

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong

Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and

Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certif ied Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial

statements also comply with the applicable

disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock

Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

1.

2.
(a) 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised

HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early

adoption for the current accounting period of the

Group and the Company. Note 3 provides

information on the changes in accounting policies

resu l t ing f rom in i t ia l  appl icat ion of  these

developments to the extent that they are relevant

to the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of presentation of the financial
statements
The financial statements are in Renminbi (“RMB”),

rounded  to  t he  nea res t  t housand .  The

measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis,

except that the following assets and liabilities are

stated at their fair value as explained in the

accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading

securities (see note 2(d)).

The consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2006 comprise the Company

and its subsidiaries.

The preparat ion of f inancial  statements in

conformity with HKFRSs requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the application of policies and reported

amounts of assets, l iabi l i t ies, income and

expenses.  The est imates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience

and various other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances, the results

of which form the basis of making the judgements

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that

are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

2.

(a) 

3

(b)

2 d
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Basis of presentation of the financial

statements (Continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the period

in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the

application of HKFRSs that have significant effect

on the financial statements and estimates with a

significant risk of material adjustment in the next

year are discussed in note 4.

(c) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

Control exists when the Group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies of an

entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In

assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into

the consolidated financial statements from the date

that control commences until the date that control

ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions,

and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group

transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the

consolidated financial statements. Unrealised

losses resulting from intra-group transactions are

eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

2.

(b)

4

(c)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net

assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that

are not owned by the Company, whether directly

or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect

of which the Group has not agreed any additional

terms with the holders of those interests which

would result in the Group as a whole having a

contractual obligation in respect of those interests

that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated

balance sheet within equity, separately from equity

attributable to the equity shareholders of the

Company. Minority interests in the results of the

Group are  presented on the face o f  the

consolidated income statement as an allocation

of the total profit or loss for the year between

minority interests and the equity shareholders of

the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the

minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the

excess, and any future losses applicable to the

minority, are charged against the Group’s interest

except to the extent that the minority has a binding

obligation to, and is able to, make additional

investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary

subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest

is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share

of losses previously absorbed by the Group has

been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in

a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

2.

(c)

2 h ii
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Other investment in debt and equity

securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for

investments in debt and equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are

classified as current assets and are initially stated

at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair

value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss

being recognised in profit and loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the

Company have the positive ability and intention to

hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity

securities. Held-to-maturity securities are initially

recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus

transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated

in the balance sheet at amortised cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a

quoted market price in an active market and whose

fair value cannot be rel iably measured are

recognised in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Other investments in securities which do not fall

into any of the above categories are classified as

available-for-sale investments and are initially

recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. At

each balance sheet date the fa i r  va lue is

remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being

recognised directly in equity, except foreign

exchange gains and losses in respect of monetary

items such as debt securities which are recognised

directly in profit or loss. Where these investments

are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the

2.

(d)

2 h i

2 h i
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Other investment in debt and equity

securities (Continued)
effective interest method is recognised in profit or

loss. When these investments are derecognised

or impaired (see note 2(h)(i)), the cumulative gain

or loss previously recognised directly in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the

date the Group and/or the Company commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(e) Property, plant and equipment
The fol lowing items of property, plant and

equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

— buildings held for own use which are

situated on leasehold land, where the fair

value of the building could be measured

separately from the fair value of the

leasehold land at the inception of the lease

(see note 2(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties

held for own use are generally dealt with in

reserves. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will

be charged to profit or loss to the extent

that it exceeds the amount held in the

reserve in respect of that same asset

immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will

be credited to profit or loss to the extent

that a deficit on revaluation in respect of

that same asset had previously been

charged to profit or loss.

2.

(d)

2 h i

(e)

2 h

ii

2 g
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) P r o p e r t y,  p l a n t  a n d  e q u i p m e n t

(Continued)
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or

disposal of an i tem of property, plant and

equipment are determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

the profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is

transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained

profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of

valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,

less their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated

over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and

their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

— Leasehold improvements Over  the shor ter  o f

unexpired term of the

leases and 20 years

— Computer equipment 3 — 5 years

— Furniture and equipment 5 years

— Motor vehicles 5 — 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and

equipment have different useful lives, the cost or

valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable

basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

2.

(e)

20

2 0
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Expenditure on research activ it ies is

recognised as an expense in the period in

which i t  is incurred. Expenditure on

development activities is capitalised if the

product or process is technically and

commercially feasible and the Group has

sufficient resources and the intention to

complete development. The expenditure

capitalised includes the cost of materials,

direct labour and an appropriate proportion

of overheads. Capitalised development

costs are stated at cost less accumulated

amortistation and impairment losses (see

n o t e  2 ( h ) ( i i ) ) .  O t h e r  d e v e l o p m e n t

expenditure is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

(ii) Amortisation of intangible assets is charged

to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful l ives are

indefinite. Capitalised development costs

with finite useful lives are amortised from

the date they are available for use and their

estimated useful lives of not exceeding five

years.

Both the period and method of amortisation

and any conclusion that the useful life of

an intangible asset is indefinite are reviewed

annually.

2.

(f)
(i)

2h ii

(ii)

5
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever

the terms of lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the leasee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under

operating leases, payments made under the leases

are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments

over the accounting periods covered by the lease

term, except where an alternative basis is more

representative of the pattern of benefits to be

derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives

received are recognised in profit or loss as an

integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or

loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating

lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities

and other  cur rent  and non-cur rent

receivables that are stated at cost or

amortised cost or are classified as available-

for-sale securities are reviewed at each

balance sheet date to determine whether

there is objective evidence of impairment.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment

loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

2.

(g)

(h)
(i)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(Continued)

— For unquoted equity securities and

current receivables that are carried

at cost, the impairment loss is

measured as the difference between

the carrying amount of the financial

asset and the estimated future cash

flows, discounted at the current

market rate of return for a similar

financial asset where the effect of

discounting is material. Impairment

losses for current receivables are

reversed if in a subsequent period

the amount of the impairment loss

decreases. Impairment losses to

equity securities are not reversed.

— For  t rade  and  o the r  cu r ren t

receivables financial assets carried

at amortised cost, the impairment

loss is measured as the difference

between the asset ’s  car ry ing

amount and the present value of

es t imated fu ture  cash f lows,

discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate (i.e.

effective interest rate computed at

initial recognition of these assets),

where the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

2.

(h) ( )
i
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount

of an impairment loss decreases and

the  dec rease  can  be  l i nked

objectively to an event occurring

after the impairment loss was

recognised, the impairment loss is

reversed through profit or loss. A

reversal of an impairment loss shall

not result in the asset’s carrying

amount exceeding that which would

have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in

prior years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the

cumulat ive loss that had been

recognised directly in equity is

removed  f rom equ i t y  and  i s

recognised in profit or loss. The

amount of the cumulative loss that

is recognised in profit or loss is the

difference between the acquisition

cost (net of any principal repayment

and amortistation) and current fair

value, less any impairment loss on

the asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or

loss in respect of available-for-sale equity

securities are not reversed through profit

or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair

value of such assets is recognised directly

in equity.

2.

(h)
i
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-

for-sale debt securities are reversed if the

subsequent increase in fair value can be

objectively related to an event occurring

after the impairment loss was recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses in such

circumstances are recognsied in profit or

loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information

are reviewed at each balance sheet date to

identify indications that the following assets

may be impaired, an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or

may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other

than properties carried at revalued

amounts);

— land lease prepayments classified as

being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is est imated. In

addition, intangible assets that are not yet

available for use and intangible assets that

have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

2.

(h)
i

(ii)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset

is the greater of its net selling price

and value in use. In assessing value

in use, the estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present

value using a pre-tax discount rate

tha t  re f l ec ts  cu r ren t  marke t

assessments of time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset.

Where an asset does not generate

cash inflows largely independent of

those f rom other  assets,  the

recoverable amount is determined for

the smallest group of assets that

g e n e r a t e s  c a s h  i n f l o w s

independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in

profit or loss whenever the carrying

amount of an asset, or the cash-

generating unit to which it belongs,

exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses recognsied in

respect of cash-generating unit are

allocated first to reduce the carrying

amount of any goodwill allocated to

the cash-generating unit (or group

of units) and then, to reduce the

carrying amount of the other assets

in the unit (or group of units) on a

pro rata basis, except that the

carrying value of an asset will not be

reduced below its individual fair

value less costs to sell, or value in

use, if determinable.

2.

(h)
ii
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than

goodwill, an impairment loss is

reversed i f  there  has been a

favourable change in the estimates

used to determine the recoverable

amount. An impairment loss in

respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is

limited to the asset’s carrying amount

that would have been determined

had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years. Reversals

of impairment losses are credited to

profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securit ies on the GEM of the Stock

Exchange, the Group is required to prepare

an interim financial report in compliance

with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,

in respect of the first six months of the

financial year. At the end of the interim

period, the Group appl ies the same

impairment test ing, recognit ion, and

reversal criteria as it would at the end of

the financial year (see notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim

period in respect of available-for-sale

investments and unquoted equity securities

carried at costs are not reversed in a

subsequent period. This is the case even if

no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been

recognised had the impairment been

assessed only at the end of the financial

year to which the interim period relates.

2.

(h)
(ii)

(iii)

34

2 h i ii
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs

of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price

in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of

those inventories is recognised as an expense in

the period in which the related revenue is

recognised. The amount of any write-down of

inventories to net realisable value and all losses of

inventories are recognised as an expense in the

period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The

amount of any reversal of any write-down of

inventories, is recognised as a reduction in the

amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(j) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised

at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost

less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

(see note 2(h)), except where the receivables are

interest-free loans made to related parties without

any f ixed repayment terms or the effect of

discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,

the receivables are stated at cost less impairment

losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(h)).

2.

i

(j)

2 h

2 h
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(k) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised

at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost

unless the effect of discount ing would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(l) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

and on hand, demand deposits with banks and

other financial institutions, and short-term, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in value, having

been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and

form an integral  part of the Group’s cash

management are also included as a component

of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

the consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Employee benefits
(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual

leave, contributions to defined contribution

plans and the cost of non-monetary

benefits are accrued in the year in which

the associated services are rendered by

employees. Where payment or settlement

is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present

values.

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident

Funds are required under the Hong Kong

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance and mandatory central pension

schemes organised by The People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”) government

are recognised as an expense in the income

statement as incurred.

2.

(k)

(l)

(m)
(i)

(ii)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) The fair value of share options granted to

employees is recognised as an employee

cost with a corresponding increase in a

share option reserve within equity. The fair

value is measured at grant date using

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking

into account the terms and conditions upon

which the options were granted. Where the

employees have to meet vesting conditions

before becoming unconditionally entitled to

the share options, the total estimated fair

value of the share options is spread over

the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of

share options that is expected to vest is

reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative

fair value recognised in prior years is

charged/credited to the profit or loss for the

year of the review, unless the original

employee expenses qualify for recognition

as an asset ,  w i th  a  cor responding

adjustment to the share option reserve. On

vesting date, the amount recognised as an

expense is adjusted to reflect the actual

number of share options that vest (with a

corresponding adjustment to the share

option reserve) except where forfeiture is

only due to not achieving vesting conditions

that relate to the market price of the

Company’s shares. The equity amount is

recognised in the share option reserve until

either the option is exercised (when it is

transferred to the share premium account)

or the option expires (when it is released

directly to the retained profits).

2.

(m)
(iii)

Black-Scholes
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except

to the extent that they relate to items recognised

directly in equity, in which case they are recognised

in equity.

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable

income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from

deductible and taxable temporary differences

respectively, being the differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.

Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred

tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits

will be available against which the asset can be

utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that

may support the recognition of deferred tax assets

arising from deductible temporary differences

include those that will arise from the reversal of

existing taxable temporary differences, provided

those differences relate to the same taxation

authority and the same taxable entity, and are

expected to reverse either in the same period as

the expected reversal of the deductible temporary

difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising

from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or

forward. The same criteria are adopted when

determining whether existing taxable temporary

differences support the recognition of deferred tax

assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,

2.

(n)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Income tax (Continued)

that is, those differences are taken into account if

they relate to the same taxation authority and the

same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse

in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred

tax assets and liabilities are those temporary

differences arising from goodwill not deductible for

tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or

liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable

profit (provided they are not part of a business

combination), and temporary differences relating

to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,

in the case of taxable differences, the Group

controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable

that the differences wi l l  not reverse in the

foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is

measured based on the expected manner of

realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of

the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted

or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and l iabi l i t ies are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is

reviewed at each balance sheet date and is

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such

reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the

distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

2.

(n)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,

and movements therein, are presented separately

from each other and are not offset. Current tax

assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and

deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities

if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and

liabil it ies, the Company or the Group

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes

levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each

future period in which significant amounts

of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered, intend

to realise the current tax assets and settle

the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain

timing or amount when the Company or the Group

has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow

of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material,

provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

2.

(n)

(o)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required, or the amount

cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is

disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will

only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more future events are also

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(p) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the consolidated income statement

as follows:

(i) Sales of software and hardware

Revenue is recognised when the Group has

transferred to the customer the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods. Revenue excludes value added and

business taxes, and is after deduction of

any goods returns and trade discounts.

(ii) Income from provision of maintenance and

other services

Revenue from maintenance and other

services is recognised at the time when the

service is performed.

2.

(o)

(p)

(i)

(ii)



72

Notes to the Financial Statements

China Leason Investm
ent G

roup Co�� Lim
ited

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Dividends

— Dividend income from unl isted

investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ r ights to receive

payment is established.

— Div idend  income f rom l i s ted

investments is recognised when the

share price of the investments goes

ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

(v) Value added tax refunds

Value added tax refunds is recognised when

the acknowledgement of refunds from the

Tax Bureau has been received.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the

balance sheet initially as deferred income

when there is reasonable assurance that

they will be received and that the Group

will comply with the conditions attaching to

them. Grants that compensate the Group

for expenses incurred are recognised as

revenue in profit or loss on a systematic

basis in the same periods in which the

expenses are incurred.  Grants that

compensate the Group for the cost of an

asset are recognised in profit or loss as

revenue on a systematic basis over the

useful life of the asset.

2.

(p)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Deferred income

Warranty costs are received in advance for the

whole period under warranty and are recognised

in the balance sheet initially as deferred income.

They will be deferred usually for one year and

subsequently charged to the consolidated income

statement when incurred.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies
Items included in the financial statements of each

of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment in

which the ent i ty operates ( the “funct ional

currency”). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s

presentation currency. The functional currency of

the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the

presentation currency is RMB. The reason for using

RMB as a presentation currency of the Company

is that the functional currency of the substantive

entities within the Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling

at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into RMB at the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabil it ies that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated using the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary

assets and liabil it ies denominated in foreign

currencies that are stated at fair value are

translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates the fair value was determined.

2.

(q)

(r)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Translat ion of  fore ign currencies

(Continued)
The results of foreign operations are translated into

RMB at the exchange rates approximately the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the

transactions. Balance sheet items, including

goodwil l arising on consolidation of foreign

operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,

are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting

exchange differences are recognised directly in a

separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on

consolidation of a foreign operation acquired

before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign

exchange rate that appl ied at the date of

acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative

amount of the exchange differences recognised in

equity which relate to that foreign operation is

included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

(s) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, to

control the Group or exercise significant

influence over the Group in making financial

and operating policy decisions, or has joint

control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to

common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a

joint venture in which the Group is a

venturer;

2.

(r)

(s)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued)

(iv) the party is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent, or a close family member of such

an individual, or is an entity under the

control, joint control or significant influence

of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party

referred to in (i) or is an entity under the

control, joint control or significant influence

of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan

which is for the benefit of employees of the

Group or of any entity that is a related party

of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.

(t) Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the

Group that is engaged either in providing products

or services (business segment), or in providing

products or services within a particular economic

environment (geographical segment), which is

subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial

reporting system, the Group has chosen business

segment information as the primary reporting

format and geographical segment information as

the secondary reporting format for the purposes

of these financial statements.

2.

(s)
(iv)

(v) i

(vi)

(t)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(t) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and

liabilities include items directly attributable to a

segment as well as those that can be allocated on

a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,

segment assets may include inventories, trade

receivables and property, plant and equipment.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities

are determined before intra-group balances and

intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of

the consolidation process, except to the extent that

such intra-group balances and transactions are

between group entities within a single segment.

Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost

incurred during the period to acquire segment

assets (both tangible and intangible) that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and

corporate assets,  in terest-bear ing loans,

borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financial

expenses.

2.

(t)



77

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs

that are first effective or available for early adoption for

the current accounting period of the Group.

Note 2 summarises the significant accounting policies of

the Group after the adoption of these developments to

the extent that they are relevant to the Group. The

adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on

how the results for the current or prior accounting periods

have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior

period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not appl ied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 33) except for HK(IFRIC) 10,

Interim financial reporting and impairment, which is

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

November 2006.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies

which are described in note 2, management has made

the following judgements that have significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The

key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are also discussed below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
land lease prepayments and intangible assets
In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event

previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the

Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset

impairment, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event

has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event

affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (ii)

whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported

by the net present value of future cash flows which are

3.

2

10

33

4.

2

i

ii
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
land lease prepayments and intangible assets
(Continued)
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or

derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions

to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including

whether these cash flow projections are discounted using

an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected

by management to determine the level of impairment,

including the discount rates or the growth rate

assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially

affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at

least on an annual basis or where an indication of

impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the value

in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires

the Group to make an estimate of the expected future

cash flows from the assets and also to choose a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

those cash flows.

Impairment of receivables
The policy for impairment on receivables of the Group is

based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing

analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in

assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,

including the current creditworthiness and the past

collection history of each customer. If the financial

conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,

resulting in an impairment of their abil ity to make

payments, additional impairment may be required.

4.

iii
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5. TURNOVER
The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are development of
computer software, resale of hardware, provision of
system integration and maintenance.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
and services provided to customers, which excludes
value-added and business taxes, and is after deduction
of any goods returns and trade discounts. The amount of
each significant category of revenue recognised in
turnover during the year is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of software 16,387 23,732
Sales of hardware 764 2,341
Maintenance and other services fees 8,622 5,173

25,773 31,246

6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Other revenue
Interest income from bank deposits 268 168
Interest income from others — 66
Value-added tax refunds 2,815 2,917
Government grants received 213 84
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

(note 34) 34 160 —
Recovery of bad and doubtful debt 557 —
Others 317 20

4,330 3,255

Other net income
Net realised and unrealised gains

on trading securities 1,518 185

5.

6.
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7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

(a) Staff costs
Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 1,058 727
Employee share option benefits — 393
Salaries, wages and other

benefits 15,545 14,860

Total staff costs #  # 16,603 15,980

Less: Amount capitalised as
development costs (10,404) (3,079)

6,199 12,901

(b) Other items
Cost of inventories sold and

services rendered #  # 10,379 10,748
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,859 5,450
Auditors’ remuneration 403 379
Depreciation #  # 1,356 1,361
Less: Amount capitalised as

development costs — (255)

1,356 1,106

Amortisation of land lease
prepayments 87 87

Operating lease charges in
respect of land and buildings 387 537

Impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts — 3,700

Impairment loss on intangible
assets 2,517 483

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2 134

Research costs 3,871 4,156

# Cost of inventories sold and services rendered
inc l udes  s ta f f  cos t s  o f  app rox ima te l y

RMB2,204,000 (2005: RMB2,469,000) and

depreciat ion expenses of  approximate ly

RMB83,000 (2005: RMB38,000) that are also

included in the respect ive total  amounts

disclosed separately above for each of these

types of expenses.

7.

#

2,204,000

2,469,000

83,000

38,000
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income

statement represents:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Current tax  Provision

for the PRC enterprise

income tax

Provided for the year 369 1,134

Deferred taxation

Origination and reversal

of temporary 26 a

differences(note 26(a)) (396) (673)

Tax (credit)/expenses (27) 461

Note:

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as

the Group has no estimated assessable profits for the

years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005. Taxes on

profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the

applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in which

the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof during the

year.

Fujian Shine Science & Technology Limited (“Fujian Shine

Science”), which is a subsidiary of the Company and

obtained the approval from PRC tax authority on 26

February 2003, is exempted from PRC enterprise income

tax for the two years starting from its first profit-making

year after Fujian Shine Science became a wholly foreign-

owned enterprise, and is entitled to a 50% relief on PRC

enterprise income tax for the subsequent three years. No

provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been made

in the financial statements of Fujian Shine Science as Fujian

Shine Science has no estimated assessable profits for the

year ended 31 December 2006. For year ended 31

December 2005, Fujian Shine Science was subject to PRC

enterprise income tax at a rate of 15%.

8.

(a)

50%

15%
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income

statement represents: (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

Shanghai  Shine Science & Technology L imited

(“Shanghai Shine Science”), which is a subsidiary of the

Company and obtained a certif icate of “Software

Enterprise” on 10 April 2002, is exempted from PRC

enterprise income tax for the two years starting from its

first profit-making year, and is entitled to a 50% relief on

PRC enterprise income tax for the subsequent three

years. Accordingly, Shanghai Shine Science is subject

to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 7.5% for the

years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005.

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been

made in the financial statements of Fuzhou Xinwangluo

Network Company Limited (“Xinwangluo”) and Shanghai

Xingyishi Management Consulting Company Limited

(“Shanghai Xingyishi”), subsidiaries of the Company, as

Xinwangluo and Shanghai Xingyishi have no estimated

assessable profits for the years ended 31 December

2006 and 2005. Shanghai Xingyishi has been disposed

of during the year.

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax had been

made in the financial statements of Shenzhen Yingqitong

Technology Limited (‘Shenzhen Yingqitong”), a subsidiary

of the Company, as Shenzhen Yingqitong has no

estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31

December 2006 and 2005. Shenzhen Yingquitong has

been disposed of during the year.

8.

(a)

50%

7.5%
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/

expense and accounting (loss)/profit at
applicable tax rates:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss)/profit before income tax (6,618) 1,399

Notional tax on (loss)/profit
before income tax, calculated
at the  applicable rate

(2,148) 462
Tax effect of non-deductible

expenses 632 595
Tax effect of non-taxable

revenue (518) (831)
Tax effect of unused tax losses

not recognised 1,315 677
Tax effect of utilisation of tax

loss not recognised — (25)
Effect of different tax rates of

companies of the Group 692 (417)

Actual tax (credit)/expense (27) 461

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fees 168 240
Salaries and other emoluments 3,048 1,162
Bonus 33 124
Employee share option benefits — 51
Retirement benefit scheme

contributions 14 18

3,263 1,595

8.

b

9.
161
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)
Details of directors’ remuneration by individuals are as
follows:

Retirement
Employee benefit

Salaries and share option scheme
Fees other benefits Bonus benefits contributions Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors
Wang Zhong Sheng (note 1) 1 1,024 1,024
Shi Liang (note 1) 1 819 819
Gu Yun (note 2) 2 208 11 3 222
Qiu Yixin (note 2) 2 233 233
Li Xiaoyuan (note 2) 2 22 2 1 25
Jiang Yulai (note2) 2 66 3 3 72
Chen Yunrong (note 2) 2 137 10 4 151

Non-executive directors
Chang Jian (note 1) 1 205 205
Kwok Shun Tim (note 1) 1 205 205
Chen Qun (note 2) 2 19 19
Ye Jinxing (note 5) 5 110 7 3 120

Independent non-executive
directors

Yan Chang Ming (note 3) 3 18 18
Luo Wei Kun (note 3) 3 18 18
Pang Yuk Fong (note 3) 3 18 18
Choy Tak Ho (note 4) 4 45 45
Liu Bo (note 4) 4 18 18
Sin Ka Man (note 4) 4 51 51

Total in 2006 168 3,048 33 14 3,263

Note:

1. Appointed as executive director on 16 May 2006.

2. Resigned as executive director on 16 May 2006.

3. Appointed as independent non-executive director on 15

August 2006.

4. Resigned as independent non-executive director on 15

August 2006.

5. Redesignated as non-executive director from executive

director on 16 May 2006.

9.

1

2.

3.

4.

5.
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Retirement
Employee benefit

Salaries and share option scheme
Fees other benefits Bonus benefits contributions Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Executive directors
Gu Yun 217 37 3 257
Qiu Yixin 304 37 3 344
Ye Jinxing 157 23 3 183
Li Xiaoyuan 37 3 40
Jiang Yulai 173 27 3 203
Chen Yunrong 274 3 277

Non-executive director
Chen Qun 21 21

Independent non-executive
directors

Choy Tak Ho 73 17 90
Liu Bo 73 17 90
Siu Ka Man 73 17 90

Total in 2005 240 1,162 124 51 18 1,595

Certain directors were granted options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The details of the share options
granted and outstanding in respect of each director as at
31 December 2006 and 2005 are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the directors’ report
and note 29.

During the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005,
no directors waived any emoluments. No inducement
payments to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any director for the years ended 31 December 2006 and
2005.

Each of the executive directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
these contracts shall continue thereafter until terminated
by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ notice in writing.

9.

29
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all

(2005: all) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed

in note 9. However, one of the five highest paid directors

of the Company resigned and remained as an employee

of the Group during the year, whose emolument as director

is set out in note 9 above. The emolument for the resigned

director remained as an employee is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Salaries and other emoluments 13

Retirement scheme contributions 3

16

During the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005,

no emoluments were paid or payable to the five highest

paid individuals (including directors and other employees)

as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. For the year ended 31

December 2006, the emoluments of the one individual

with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

Number of individuals

2006 2005

RMB Nil  RMB1,060,000 (equivalent

to approximately HK$ nil to 1,060,000

HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000 1

10.

9

9
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11. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company includes a loss of

approximately RMB7,732,000 (2005: RMB3,634,000)

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company.

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share

is based on the loss attributable to equity holders

of the Company of approximately RMB6,591,000

(2005: a profit of approximately RMB938,000) and

the weighted average of 473,000,000 (2005:

473,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
There is no potential dilution of loss per share

during the year ended 31 December 2006.

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended

31 December 2005 was the same as the basic

earnings per share as the exercise price of the

Company’s outstanding share option was higher

than the fair price per share of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2005.

13. SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information is presented in respect of the

Group’s business segments. As all of the Group’s revenue

and results were substantially derived from the PRC, no

geographical segment information is presented.

11.

7,732,000

3,634,000

12.
(a)

6,591,000

938,000

473,000,000

473,000,000

(b)

13.
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business
segments:

Software sales : Sales of software relating to
securities and financial
industries in the PRC

Hardware sales : Sales of hardware

Provision of : Provision of technical support for
maintenance its customers
and other
services

(i) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
business segments is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue from external
customers
Software sales 16,387 23,732
Hardware sales 764 2,341
Provision of maintenance

and other services 8,622 5,173

Total revenue from external
customers 25,773 31,246

Other revenue
Software sales 2,815 2,917
Unallocated items 1,515 338

Total other revenue 4,330 3,255

Total operating revenue 30,103 34,501

Segment results
Software sales 3,771 11,845
Hardware sales 29 95
Provision of maintenance

and other services 8,456 14,898

12,256 26,838
Unallocated operating income

and expenses (18,874) (25,439)

(Loss)/profit before income tax
(6,618) 1,399

Income tax 27 (461)

(Loss)/profit for the year (6,591) 938

13.

(i)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
(ii) An analysis of the Group’s depreciation and

amortisation by business segments is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Depreciation and amortisation
Software sales 6,585 6,077
Hardware sales —
Provision of maintenance

and other services 65 36
Unallocated assets 652 785

7,302 6,898

(iii) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
business segments is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Segment assets
Software sales 22,080 17,670
Hardware sales 274 1,137
Provision of maintenance

and other services 133 147

22,487 18,954
Unallocated assets 34,613 41,078

Total assets 57,100 60,032

Segment liabilities
Software sales 6,061 3,856
Hardware sales 38 78
Provision of maintenance

and other services 1,616 1,551

7,715 5,485
Unallocated liabilities 7,057 5,166

Total liabilities 14,772 10,651

13.

(iI)

(iii)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
(iv) An analysis of the Group’s capital expenditure by

business segments is as follows:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Capital expenditure

Software sales 10,749 3,588

Hardware sales —

Provision of maintenance

and other services 285 55

Unallocated assets 549 1,107

11,583 4,750

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) The Group

Furniture

Leasehold Leasehold Computer and Motor

buildings improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost

At 1 January 2005 1,673 1,035 4,486 665 1,099 8,958

Additions 957 381 78 1,416

Disposals (1,035) (2,803) (57) (205) (4,100)

Exchange adjustments (2) (2)

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006

1,673 957 2,064 684 894 6,272

Additions 741 108 330 1,179

Disposal of subsidiaries (41) (41)

Disposals (38) (275) (62) (435) (810)

Exchange adjustments (2) (4) (6)

31 December 2006 1,673 919 2,487 726 789 6,594

13.

(iv)

14.
a
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(a) The Group (Continued)

Furniture

Leasehold Leasehold Computer and Motor

buildings improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2005 40 1,032 2,888 314 414 4,688

Charge for the year 84 197 818 131 131 1,361

Disposals (1,035) (2.659) (46) (194) (3,934)

At 31 December 2005

and 1 January 2006 124 194 1,047 399 351 2,115

Charge for the year 82 397 622 139 116 1,356

Disposals of subsidiaries (7) (7)

Disposals (299) (52) (224) (575)

Exchange adjustments (1) (4) (5)

At 31 December 2006 206 591 1,362 482 243 2,884

Net book value

At 31 December 2006 1,467 328 1,125 244 546 3,710

At 31 December 2005 1,549 763 1,017 285 543 4,157

14.

a
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(b) The Company

Computer Furniture and Motor

equipment equipment vehicles Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost

At 1 January 2005 42 106 148

Exchange adjustment (2) (2)

At 31 December 2005

and 1 January 2006 42 104 146

Additions 35 12 330 377

Exchange adjustment (2) (4) (6)

At 31 December 2006 75 112 330 517

Accumulated

depreciation

At 1 January 2005 21 42 63

Charge for the year 10 21 31

At 31 December 2005

and 1 January 2006 31 63 94

Charge for the year 8 21 16 45

Exchange adjustment (1) (3) (4)

At 31 December 2006 38 81 16 135

Net book value

At 31 December 2006 37 31 314 382

At 31 December 2005 11 41 52

14.

(b)
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15. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net book value at 1 January

 as previously reported  1,742

 effect of adopting HKAS 17  

17 — 1,829

 as restated  1,742 1,829

Amortisation (87) (87)

Net book value at 31 December

1,655 1,742

Current portion of non-current assets (87) (87)

Non-current portion 1,568 1,655

The leasehold land is held under medium term lease and

situated in the PRC. The cost of the leasehold land is

RMB1,881,000 (2005: RMB1,881,000).

15.

1,881,000

1,881,000
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Development

costs

RMB’000

Cost

At 1 January 2005 15,331

Additions through internal development 3,334

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006

18,665

Additions through internal development 10,404

At 31 December 2006 29,069

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

At 1 January 2005 2,135

Amortisation for the year 5,450

Impairment loss 483

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006

8,068

Amortisation for the year 5,859

Impairment loss 2,517

At 31 December 2006 16,444

Net book value

At 31 December 2006 12,625

At 31 December 2005 10,597

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over their useful lives with

the period of not exceeding five years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost

of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

16.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2006, the

management of the Group assessed the recoverable

amounts of the intangible assets. Based on this

assessment, the carrying amount of the intangible assets

was written down by approximately RMB2,517,000. The

recoverable amounts have been determined on the basis

of value in use calculations. Their recoverable amounts

are based on certain key assumptions. All value in use

calculations use cash flow projections based on the

financial budgets approved by the management cover a

4-year period, and a discount rate of 15%. Cash flow

projections during the budget period for the intangible

assets are based on the expected gross margins during

the budget period. Budgeted gross margins have been

de te rm ined  based  on  pas t  pe r fo rmance  and

management’s expectations for the market development.

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 6,018 19

16.

2,517,000

15%

17.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2006, the details of all subsidiaries of
the Company were as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

Particulars of issued Group’s
Place of and fully paid share effective

Name of company incorporation capital/registered capital  interest Direct Indirect Principal activities

Shine Science & British Virgin 100,000 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology (BVI) Islands (“BVI”) shares of
Company Limited US$0.01 each
(“Shine Science BVI”)

100,000
0.01

Inboom Holdings* BVI 50 ordinary 100% 100% Not yet commenced business
Limited (“Inboom”) shares of

US$1.00 each
50

1.00

Fujian Shine Science PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Development of computer
( ) RMB12,500,000 software, resale of hardware,
(note (a)) provision of system integration

and maintenance in the PRC

a 12,500,000

Shanghai Shine Science PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Development of computer
( ) RMB5,000,000 software, resale of hardware,
(note (b)) provision of system integration

and maintenance in the PRC

b 5,000,000

17.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

Particulars of issued Group’s
Place of and fully paid share effective

Name of company incorporation capital/registered capital  interest Direct Indirect Principal activities

Xinwangluo PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Resale of hardware and
( ) RMB1,000,000 network installation in the PRC
(note (c))

c 1,000,000

* PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of natural gases
(note(d)) RMB6,000,000 in the PRC
( )

d 6,000,000

* PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of natural gases
(note(e)) RMB6,000,000 in the PRC
( )

e 6,000,000

17.

* Incorporated and not yet commenced business during the

year.

*
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Note:

(a) Fujian Shine Science is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise

established in the PRC to be operated for 24.5 years up

to July 2022.

(b) Shanghai Shine Science is an equity joint venture

established in the PRC to be operated for 20 years up

to February 2021. The Group nominated Ms. Gu Yun

(“Ms. Gu”), the Chairperson of the Company to hold the

10% interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group.

(c) Xinwangluo is an equity joint venture established in the

PRC to be operated for 10 years up to June 2011. In

January 2005, the Group acquired the remaining 33%

of its interest in Xinwangluo and nominated Ms. Gu to

hold the 33% interest in trust for and on behalf of the

Group.

(d)  is  a whol ly  fore ign-owned enterpr ise

established in the PRC to be operated for 31 years up

to November 2036.

(e)  is  a whol ly  fore ign-owned enterpr ise

established in the PRC to be operated for 31 years up

to November 2036.

18. TRADING SECURITIES

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Trading securities (at market value)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 1,009 753

Unlisted investment funds in PRC 1,983 1,000

2,992 1,753

17.

(a)

(b)

10%

(c)

10

33%

33%

(d)

(e)

18.
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19. INVENTORIES

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Computer hardware and

accessories acquired for resale 120 121

All inventories were stated at cost as at 31 December

2006 and 2005.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Amounts due from subsidiaries

(note (a)) a — 19,138 30,907

Trade receivables (note(d)) d 4,280 6,351 —

Rental and other deposits 111 110 —

Advances to suppliers 498 453 —

Prepayments and other

receivables 7,440 523 868 156

Due from securities broker

firms (note (b)) b 6,646 1,161 —

Others 1,220 324

20,195 8,598 20,330 31,063

19.

20.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
Note:

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group

traded equity and debt securities through securities

broker firms. As at 31 December 2006, amount of

approximately RMB6,646,000 (2005: RMB1,161,000)

was due from securities broker firms. The amounts are

unsecured, bears interest at 2.5 per cent. (2005: 2.5 per

cent.) per annum and can be withdrawn by the Group at

any time.

(c) All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental

and other deposits, are expected to be recovered within

one year.

(d) Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of impairment loss for doubtful debts) with

the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 month 1 — 3,613

More than 1 month but 1 3

less than 3 months 2,279 1,384

More than 3 months but 3 6

less than 6 months 2,001 1,334

More than 6 months but 6 12

less than 12 months 1,179 2,927

More than 12 months 12 2,932 1,761

8,391 11,019

Less: Impairment loss for bad

and doubtful debts (4,111) (4,668 )

4,280 6,351

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days

to 180 days to its customers. The Group may, on

a case by case basis and after evaluation of the

business relationship and credit worthiness, extend

the credit period upon customers’ request.

20.

(a)

(b)

6 ,646 ,000

1,161,000

2.5 2.5

(c)

(d)

30 180



101

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

21. TAX RECOVERABLE

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Value added tax refunds receivable 794 1,046

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash at banks 14,886 17,952 1,373 753

Cash on hand 123 31 — 1

Money at call and short notice — 14,035 —

Cash and cash equivalents 15,009 32,018 1,373 754

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates. Money at call and short notice

for the year ended 31 December 2005 were made for

various periods between one day and seven days

depended on the immediate cash requirement of the

Group and earned interest rate at the respective short

term time deposit rate.

21.

22.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade payables 26 78 —

Amount due to a

director (note (a)) a 1,549 —

Deposits received from

customers 6,111 3,861 —

Employees welfare payable 609 603 —

Accrued expenses and

other payables 3,997 1,617 4,140 596

Other tax payables 353 1,112 3

12,645 7,271 4,143 596

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables

with the ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

After 1 month but less than 3 months 1 3 26 78

Note:

(a) The amount due to the director — Wang Zhong Sheng

is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

23.

(a)
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24. DEFERRED INCOME

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 1,546 856

Released to the consolidated

income statement (1,546) (856)

Income deferred during the year 1,616 1,546

At 31 December 1,616 1,546

25. TAXATION PAYABLE

The Group

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

PRC enterprise income tax

At 1 January 997 92

Provided for the year 369 1,134

PRC enterprise income tax paid (1,296) (229)

At 31 December 70 997

24.

25.
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised
The following are the major deferred tax assets/

(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon

during the current year are as follows:

The Group

Impairment Impairment

loss for loss of

Tax Development bad and intangible

losses costs  doubtful debt asset Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2005 123 (1,727) 94 (1,510)

Credited to the consolidated 8 a

income statement (note 8(a)) (123) 260 536 673

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006 (1,467) 630 (837)

Credited to the consolidated 8 a

income statement (note 8(a)) 380 (48) (193) 257 396

At 31 December 2006 380 (1,515) 437 257 (441)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Deferred tax liabilities (441) (837)

26.
(a)

:
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/ l iabi l i t ies not

recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of  tax losses of  approximately
RMB2,095,000 (2005: RMB1,009,000) as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s tax losses
o f  approx ima te l y  RMB2,095 ,000  (2005 :
RMB590,000) will expire in five years from the
year in which they were incurred and no tax
losses that do not expire under current tax
legislation (2005: RMB419,000).

The Group and the Company have no other
deferred assets/(liabilities) not recognised for the
year and at the balance sheet date.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

The Group and the Company

2006 2005

Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount

‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000

Authorised  Ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 (approximately 0.01
equivalent to 0.0106
RMB0.0106) each:

At 1 January and
31 December 5,000,000 53,000 5,000,000 53,000

Issued and fully paid 
Ordinary shares of 0.01
HK$0.01 (approximately
equivalent to 0.0106
RMB0.0106) each:

At 1 January and
31 December 473,000 5,014 473,000 5,014

26.
(b)

2,095,000   
1,009,000

2,095,000
590, 000

419,000

27.
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28. RESERVES
(a) The Group

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Common
General welfare Share

Share Merger reserve reserve option Translation Retained Minority
premium reserve fund fund reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

(note (i)) (note (ii)) (note (iii))

i ii iii
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2005 34,845 (2,351) 2,171 1,055 234 7,024 42,978 155 43,133

Exchange difference on translation
financial statements of
foreign entities (97) (97) (97)

Profit for the year 938 938 938

Profit appropriations 732 366 (1,098)

Employee share option benefits 393 393 393

Forfeiture of employee
share options (24) 24

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006, as previously
reported

34,845 (2,351) 2,903 1,421 603 (97) 6,888 44,212 155 44,367

Transfer to general reserve
fund (note (iii)) (iii) 1,421 (1,421)

At 1 January 2006, as restated
34,845 (2,351) 4,324 — 603 (97) 6,888 44,212 155 44,367

Exchange difference on translation
financial statements of
foreign entities (307) (307) (307)

Loss for the year (6,591) (6,591) (6,591)
Profit appropriations 106 (106)
Forfeiture of employee

share options (603) 603
Disposal of subsidiaries (155) (155)

At 31 December 2006
34,845 (2,351) 4,430 (404) 794 37,314 37,314

28.
(a)
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28. RESERVES (Continued)
(a) The Group (Continued)

Note:
(i) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the amount of
reserves of  subsid iar ies that have been
capitalised as a result of the merger.

(ii) General reserve fund

According to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, each of the PRC subsidiaries is
required to appropriate at least 10% of after-tax
profit (after offsetting prior year’s losses), based
on the PRC statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principals (“GAAP”) and
financial regulations applicable to the PRC
enterprises, to a general reserve fund until the
balance of the fund reaches 50% of the PRC
subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter, any
further appropriation can be made at the
directors’ discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase
the capital on the condition that the general
reserve fund shall be maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the registered capital after such
increase.

The directors of Fujian Shine Science determined
not to make any appropriation to the general
reserve fund as this subsidiary has sustained loss
for the year ended 31 December 2006 and had
proposed to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation to the general reserve fund for the year
ended 31 December 2005.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science have
proposed to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation to the general reserve fund for the years
ended 31 December 2006 and 2005.

The directors of Xinwangluo and Shanghai
X ingy ish i  de te rmined not  to  make any
appropriation to the general reserve fund as
these subsidiaries have sustained loss for the
year ended 31 December 2005.

The directors of Shenzhen Yinqitong determined
not to make any appropriation to the general
reserve fund as the subsidiary have sustained
loss for the year ended 31 December 2005.

28.
a

(i)

(ii)

10%

50%

25%

10%

10%
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28. RESERVES (Continued)
(a) The Group (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iii) Common welfare reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations in the PRC and the articles of

association of all the subsidiaries in PRC, each

of the subsidiaries is required to appropriate 5%

to 10% of their statutory profit after tax under

PRC GAAP after offsetting prior years’ losses to

common welfare reserve fund. Such fund can

be used for collective employees benefits, but

cannot be used to pay for employees welfare

expenses. However, according to the Ministry

of Finance of the PRC announcement number

67 on the 15 March 2006, pursuant to the

Company Law of PRC Sec 167, the reserve

previously allocated to be common welfare

reserve fund will be deemed to transferred to the

general reserve fund on 1 January 2006. Upon

the announcement, no subsequent prof i t

distribution of the common welfare reserve fund

was needed.

The directors of Fujian Shine Science had

proposed to transfer 5% of the profit after

taxation to the common welfare reserve fund for

the year ended 31 December 2005.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science had

proposed to transfer 10% of the profit after

taxation to the general reserve fund for the year

ended 31 December 2005.

The directors of Xinwangluo, Shanghai Xingyishi
and ShenZhen Yingitong determined not to make
any appropriation to the common welfare reserve
fund for the years ended 31 December 2005.

28.
a

(iii)

5%

10%

67

167

5%

10%



109

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006 (Expressed in Renminbi)

28. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company

Share Accumulated Share option

premium losses reserve Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2005 34,845 (5,536) 234 29,543

Employee share option

benefits 393 393

Forfeiture of employee

share option (24) (24)

Loss for the year (3,634) (3,634)

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006

34,845 (9,170) 603 26,278

Forfeiture of

employee share option — 603 (603 ) —

Loss for the year — (7,332) — (7,332)

At 31 December 2006

34,845 (15,899) — 18,946

Notes:

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman

Islands, share premium is distributable to shareholders,

subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare

or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of share

premium if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the

realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than

the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

account.

28. 
(b)

i

ii
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28. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

At 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount of the

Company’s reserves avai lable for distr ibution to

shareholders was approximately RMB18,946,000 (2005:

RMB25,675,000) computing in accordance with the

Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and

the Company’s articles of association. This includes the

Company ’s  sha re  p rem ium o f  app rox ima te l y

RMB34,845,000 (2005:  RMB34,845,000)  less

accumulated losses of approximately RMB15,899,000

(2005: RMB9,170,000), which is available for distribution

provided that immediately following the date on which

the dividend is proposed, the Company will be able to

pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 July 2004
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contributions to the Group. The
Scheme will expire on 27 July 2013. Under the Scheme,
the Company may grant options to any person who is a
director or employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest, or any classes of supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, manager or officer of the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed ten per cent. of the total shares of the Company
in issue at the date of listing of the Company. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed thirty per
cent. of the total shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each
eligible person in any 12-month period must not exceed
one per cent. of the total shares of the Company in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of the individual
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval.

28.
(b)

18,946,000

25,675,000

34,845,000

34,845,000

15,899,000
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from

the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration

for the grant. In respect of option holders other than

suppliers and customers, option may be exercised, which

shall commence 1 year from the date on which that option

is granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of

(i) a 10-year period from the date of such grant and (ii) 10

years from 28 July 2003. In respect of option holders who

are suppliers and customers, such period shall commence

on the date of grant and expire 1 year thereafter. The

subscription price is determined by the Board, but shall

not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the

shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s

daily quotations on the date of grant of that option, which

must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of

the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant of that option;

and (c) the nominal value for the time being of each shares

of the Company.

(a) Movements in share options

Number of options

2006 2005

At 1 January 17,930,000 20,000,000

Forfeited during the year (17,930,000) (2,070,000)

At 31 December — 17,930,000

Options vested at 31 December

— 5,379,000

During the year ended 31 December 2005, no

options were exercised or granted.

29.
21

1

i

ii 10

1

a

b

c
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Movements in share options (Continued)

The following table discloses the details of the

share options held by directors and employees and

movements in such holdings during the years 2006

and 2005:

Number of share options

Outstanding at
31 December Forfeited

Outsstanding Lapsed during 2005 and during Outstanding at Exercise price
Date of grant 1 January 2005 the year 1 January 2006 the year 31 December 2006 per share

HK$

Directors 6 July 2004 1,410,000 1,410,000 (1,410,000) 0.256

Employees 6 July 2004 18,590,000 (2,070,000) 16,520,000 (16,520,000) 0.256

20,000,000 (2,070,000) 17,930,000 (17,930,000)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised
share options at balance sheet date

Number of options

Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2006 2005

6 July 2004 6 July 2005 to 5 July 2008 HK$0.256 — 5,379,000

0.256

6 July 2004 6 July 2006 to 5 July 2008 HK$0.256 — 5,379,000

0.256

6 July 2004 6 July 2007 to 5 July 2008 HK$0.256 — 7,172,000

0.256

— 17,930,000

29.
(a)

(b)
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and

assumptions
For the year ended 31 December 2005, the fair

value of services received in return for share

options granted were measured by reference to

the fair value of share options granted. The

estimated fair values of the options granted on 6

July 2004 were approximately RMB 1,089,000.

The estimate of the fair value of the services

received was measured based on Black-Scholes

Option Pricing Model as follows:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Share price on grant date 6 July 2004

Exercise price HK$0.256

Expected maximum volatility

(expressed as weighted

average volatility used in

the modeling) 36%

Expected Option life

(expressed as weighted

average life used in the

model) 2.4 years

Risk-free rate (based on

the yields to maturity of

Hong Kong Exchange Fund

Note as at 6 July 2004) 2.22%

Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the

historical volatility of the Company’s share price

annualised for one year. The expected life used in

the model  had been ad justed,  based on

management’s best estimate, for the effects of non

transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The above ca lcu lat ion was based on the

assumption that there was no material difference

between the expected volatility over the whole life

of the options and the historical volatility of the

ordinary shares as set out above.

29.
(c)
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees

employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong

Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined

contr ibut ion ret i rement scheme administered by

independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the

employer and its employees are each required to make

contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’

relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant

income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme

vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC

participates in a mandatory central pension scheme

organised by the PRC government for certain of its

employees, the assets of which are held separately from

those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a

percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are

charged to the consolidated income statement as they

become payable, in accordance with the rules of the

scheme. The employer’s contributions vest fully once they

are made.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing

and retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme

administrators and the Group has no further obligations

beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by

the Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt

with in the consolidated income statement for the year

are disclosed in note 7(a) to these financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for

its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong

Kong and PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the

Company, the Group did not have any signif icant

contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2006 and 2005

in respect of the retirement of its employees.

30.

5%

20,000

7(a)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash

at banks, cash on hand, money at call and short notice,

trade and other receivables, trading securities, and, trade

and other payables. The main risks arising from the

Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign

exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk. The

directors of the Company meet periodically to analyse and

formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to

these risks. Generally, the Group introduces conservative

strategies on its risk management. As the Group’s

exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group

has not used any derivatives and other instruments for

hedging purposes. The directors review and agree policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised

as follows:

(a) Fair value and cash flow interest rate
risks
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value

of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest

rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. The Group

believes its exposure to fair value and cash flow

interest risks is normal.

(b) Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are

principally denominated in RMB. The Group

believes its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk

is normal. At present, the Group does not intend

to seek to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange

risk profile, and will consider appropriate hedging

measures in future as may be necessary.

31.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the

counterparty to a transaction is unwilling or unable

to fulfill its obligation with the results that the Group

thereby suffers financial loss. In order to minimise

the credit risk, the management of the Group

evaluates regularly the level of credit limits, credit

approvals and other monitoring procedures to

ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover

overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews

regularly the recoverable amount of each individual

receivable to ensure that adequate impairment

losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this

regards, the directors of the Company consider

that the Group’s credit risks is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentrations of

credit risk.

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group will consistently maintain a prudent

financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

(e) Price risk
The Group’s trading securities are measured at fair

value at each balance sheet date. The fair value of

trading securities is based on the quoted market

price as at the balance sheet date. Therefore, the

Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The

management  manages th is  exposure  by

maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risk profiles.

31.
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32. COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases were

payable as follows:

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 year 1 21 207 —

After 1 year but within 5 years 1 5 — 98 —

21 305 —

The Group leases a number of properties under operating

leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one

to two years, with an option to renew the lease when all

terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new

HKFRSs, HKASs and interpretations which are not yet

effective for the year ended 31 December 2006 and which

have not been adopted in the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments, new HKFRSs,

HKASs and interpretations is expected to be in the period

of initial application. So far it has concluded that the

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

32.

33.
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33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006 (Continued)
In addition, the following developments may result in new
or amended disclosures in the financial statements:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
(Amendment) Capital Disclosures1

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures1

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2007.

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the year,  the Group disposed of certa in
subsidiaries, the net assets disposed of were as follows:–

2006 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net assets disposal of:
Property, plant and equipment 34
Cash and bank balance 690
Accounts receivables 50
Other receivables 1,000
Amount due to a related company (1)
Employee welfare payables (52)
Accrued expenses (59)
Other payables (12)
Minority interests (155)

1,495
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) 6 160

Total consideration 1,655

Satisfied by
Cash 1,655

Net cash inflow arising on disposal
Cash consideration 965

33.
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35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, two subsidiaries

have entered into the fol lowing transactions with

independent third parties as follows:

(a) To purchase a developed software amounted to

RMB 4,800,000 of which was paid before year end

and classified under prepayment at the balance

date. Detai ls of the purchase refer to the

announcement dated 29 January 2007.

(b) To acquire a property amounted to RMB 6,566,120

of which certain properties were approved to be

pledged for the whole payment. The deposit of

RMB 650,000 has been paid before year end and

classified under prepayment at the balance date.

Details of the acquisition refer to the announcement

dated 15 January 2007.

36. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 December 2006, the directors  consider the ultimate

control l ing party of the Group to be Jumbo Lane

Investments Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This

entity does not produce financial statements available for

public use.

35.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 25,773 31,246 17,985 16,287 39,904

(Loss)/profit before

income tax (6,618) 1,399 657 141 15,825

Income tax 27 (461) (753) 238 (1,180)

(Loss)/profit before

minority interests (6,591) 938 (96) 379 14,645

Minority interests — — 95 329 (1,480)

(Loss)/profit

for the year (6,591) 938 (1) 708 13,165

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

At 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Total assets 57,100 60,032 55,583 55,904 41,150

Total liabilities (14,772) (10,651) (7,908) (6,424) (32,308)

Minority interest — (155) (155) (488) (2,103)

Shareholders’ fund 42,328 49,226 47,520 48,992 6,739
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